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          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you very

          3  much. We would like to say that we are happy to call

          4  this session of the Governmental Operation Committee

          5  to order and we are pleased to have the First Deputy

          6  Commissioner, Iris Weinshall, with us. And would you

          7  please identify yourselves by name and title and

          8  agency for the record.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         10  Thank you, Madame Chairwoman. I am Iris Weinshall,

         11  First Deputy Commissioner of the Department of

         12  Citywide Administrative Services.

         13                 William Diamond, our Commissioner,

         14  extends his apologies that he is unable to attend

         15  this hearing. I am joined today by the senior

         16  members of my staff.

         17                 They are: Joseph Wagner, Chief

         18  Engineer, and Deputy Commissioner for Facilities

         19  Management and Construction.

         20                 Judy Bergtraum, Deputy Commissioner

         21  for Municipal Supplies and Services.

         22                 Phil Damashek, General Counsel.

         23                 Joe DeMarco, Deputy Commissioner for

         24  Citywide Personnel Services.

         25                 Lori Fierstein, Deputy Commissioner,
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          2  Deputy Commissioner for Real Estate Services.

          3                 Dominick Gervasi, Executive Director

          4  of Management Information Systems and to my left,

          5  Robert Groppe, Capital Budget Director.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you.

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

          8  Thank you for the opportunity to meet with you this

          9  afternoon concerning DCAS' budget for the upcoming

         10  fiscal year.

         11                 My testimony today will refer to the

         12  agency's capital budget and Commissioner Diamond is

         13  scheduled to appear before you next week to discuss

         14  the agency's expense budget.

         15                 DCAS oversees a varied capital

         16  program, which is mainly geared toward projects in

         17  its portfolio of 49 City-owned buildings, which

         18  consist of 24 public office buildings and 25 court

         19  facilities.

         20                 Providing office space for other City

         21  agencies quickly and cost efficiently is an

         22  important focus of the agency.

         23                 In order to accomplish this mission,

         24  DCAS utilizes capital funds to renovate space in

         25  either City-owned buildings or facilities leased
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          2  from private firms.

          3                 In addition to the purposes which I

          4  have just mentioned, DCAS also employs capital

          5  financing to rehabilitate waterfront properties,

          6  erect fences at City-owned vacant lots and upgrade

          7  internal computer systems.

          8                 Of the $115 million in Fiscal Year

          9  2000 that DCAS has budgeted for work in City-owned

         10  office buildings. 12.6 million will be used at

         11  Queens Borough Hall for interior renovations of

         12  vacant space.

         13                 This project, when completed, will

         14  allow several City agencies, including the

         15  Department of Buildings, Housing Preservation and

         16  Development, and City Planning to relocate to this

         17  building from this space, thereby saving the

         18  taxpayers future rent payments.

         19                 DCAS has begun an elevator

         20  modernization program in various City-owned court

         21  and office buildings.

         22                 Beginning with the oldest systems,

         23  this program will focus on upgrading equipment and

         24  replacing machinery to ensure that elevators in

         25  public buildings run efficiently and safely.
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          2                 Elevator construction, worth 3.8

          3  million, will commence at the Bronx family in

          4  Criminal Court. A total of 12.9 million has been

          5  allocated in Fiscal Year 2000 for the Brooklyn

          6  municipal building, 2 Lafayette Street, 346

          7  Broadway, and the Health Building at 125 Worth

          8  Street.

          9                 DCAS will commence elevator design

         10  work at the Brooklyn Criminal Court and at the

         11  Manhattan Family Court. This program will bring all

         12  elevators up to modern standards and will continue

         13  over the next four fiscal years.

         14                 In accordance with Local Law 10,

         15  which regulates the structural integrity of facades,

         16  both 49-51 Chambers Street and the Chief Medical

         17  Examiner's Building, will undergo extensive exterior

         18  reconstruction.

         19                 These projects will cost $7.1 million

         20  and $2.3 million respectively. DCAS will perform

         21  much needed rehabilitation of the City's Court

         22  facilities totaling $59 million. Major projects

         23  include a $3.5 million boiler replacement at

         24  Manhattan Criminal Court and a $5 million

         25  reconditioning of the mechanical systems at Brooklyn
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          2  Supreme Court.

          3                 In addition, seven courts will

          4  receive upgrades of their electrical systems. These

          5  projects, which have a cumulative cost of $5.4

          6  million, will increase the buildings electrical

          7  capacity and allow for the installation of new

          8  computer systems.

          9                 In Fiscal Year 2000, DCAS will

         10  oversee $31.1 million worth of projects in leased

         11  office space. This includes an $8.8 million for the

         12  renovation outfitting of 12 floors at 60 Broad

         13  Street, which will serve as headquarters to both the

         14  Department of Homeless Services and the Department

         15  of Probation.

         16                 The Department of Mental Health,

         17  Mental Retardation and Alcoholism Services will also

         18  have its downtown headquarters renovated as part of

         19  a long-term lease renewal and an anticipated cost at

         20  $4.8 million.

         21                 The need for a new state-of-the-art

         22  data center for the Fire Department will be

         23  addressed through a $7.6 million project at 11

         24  Metrotech Center in Downtown Brooklyn.

         25                 A major customer service initiative
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          2  of the Department of Finance has been the

          3  introduction of centralized payment and adjudication

          4  centers, also known as finance business centers in

          5  each borough.

          6                 DCAS has been working closely with

          7  the Department of Finance and is planning to

          8  follow-up on the successful completion of business

          9  centers in Queens and Staten Island, with a $3.8

         10  million to begin with the renovation of lease space

         11  for the Manhattan Business Center.

         12                 A total of $5.7 million has been

         13  budgeted for construction of the Brooklyn Business

         14  Center, which will not be situated in leased

         15  offices, but rather in the City-owned Brooklyn

         16  municipal building.

         17                 Work on the Bronx business center,

         18  which will become a tenant in leased space, is

         19  slated for the near future.

         20                 Alterations to leased space for the

         21  Board of Elections are scheduled to cost $6.5

         22  million in Fiscal Year 2000. These funds will

         23  accommodate the renovation of warehouse space in

         24  both Queens and Brooklyn.

         25                 Compliance with legal mandates and
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          2  the correction of unsafe conditions are foremost

          3  priorities for DCAS.

          4                 To achieve these goals, DCAS has

          5  established an ADA task force to oversee ADA

          6  compliance renovations in court facilities.

          7                 This remediation includes ensuring

          8  ADA compliant access to court buildings, court and

          9  jury deliberation rooms and other public spaces in

         10  court facilities.

         11                 In the following months, the agency

         12  will spend a total of $9 million at ten court

         13  facilities. We are working in phases and will

         14  commence construction this June of three court

         15  buildings located in Staten Island and the Bronx.

         16                 In addition to the courts ADA

         17  program, a further $4 million will be spent on

         18  similar work at Queens Borough Hall, Staten Island

         19  Borough Hall, the Manhattan Municipal Building and

         20  346 Broadway.

         21                 In conjunction with Local Law 5, DCAS

         22  will make fire safety improvements worth $5.1

         23  million in buildings under its purview.

         24                 DCAS will also spend $2.9 million in

         25  those buildings on environmental remediation
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          2  projects, such as asbestos abatement.

          3                 Waterfront properties under DCAS

          4  jurisdiction will benefit from $5.6 million in

          5  refurbishment during Fiscal Year 2000.

          6                 In Queens, Whitestone Pier will

          7  undergo a $1.5 million rehabilitation project while

          8  Tiffany Street Pier in the Bronx will be

          9  reconstructed at a cost of $750,000.

         10                 Also included is $1 million

         11  appropriated by the Council for the reconstruction

         12  of Pier 86, which serves as the berth for the USS

         13  Intrepid.

         14                 Construction on that project is

         15  expected to begin this summer.

         16                 DCAS is in the midst of implementing

         17  a new automated system that will augment the City's

         18  ability to track and maintain its vehicle fleet.

         19                 The maintenance, control and

         20  management system will replace the outdated fleet

         21  administration management information system.

         22                 For Fiscal Year 2000, capital

         23  expenditures on this project are expected to total

         24  $900,000.

         25                 For its own internal computer system,
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          2  DCAS plans to spend $2.9 million in Fiscal Year

          3  2000. These funds will be used to improve DCAS'

          4  overall technological capabilities by upgrading its

          5  LAN. I am happy to announce that as a result of such

          6  expenditures in past fiscal years, all of DCAS's

          7  internal computer systems are fully Y2K compliant.

          8                 The completion of all of these

          9  projects in the coming fiscal year is vital to the

         10  overall maintenance and improvement of New York

         11  City's infrastructure.

         12                 I thank you for the opportunity to

         13  discuss these important matters with you and I will

         14  be happy to answer any questions that you may have.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you for

         16  your testimony. I wonder, with all that we have

         17  heard, there is a Division of Real Estate Service

         18  responsible for the sale of City-owned

         19  non-residential real estate property through

         20  foreclosures, condemnation and the transfer of

         21  surplus properties.

         22                 Kings Bridge Armory, what is the

         23  Department's plan for that site?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         25  The Department is part of a larger task force which
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          2  is being chaired by Deputy Mayor Lhota. And various

          3  other City agencies are on that task force - City

          4  Planning, DDC is on the task force, OMB, Landmarks,

          5  because as you know, the exterior and the interior

          6  building are landmarked, and the Task Force has

          7  begun to meet to discuss various alternative uses

          8  for the building.

          9                 The Board of Education has come to

         10  the task force, some community groups, some sports

         11  facilities and the task force is just beginning to

         12  examine all of those options.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Actually you are

         14  saying that the status despite the fact that the

         15  Department has declared that this site must be

         16  repaired or demolished immediately, that there is a

         17  determination that will be made either to

         18  reconstruction or demolish it, that is the current

         19  status and it will remain that way?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         21  Well, currently we haven't said that we are going to

         22  demolish the property.

         23                 We believe that with certain amount

         24  of infusion of either cash or use, that the building

         25  can be used for a better use than it is being used
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          2  now.

          3                 What we have done is we have

          4  constructed an outside bridge, because there are

          5  some issues with the facade of the building, we

          6  wouldn't want the public to be harmed in any way.

          7  But right now we are not considering demolishing the

          8  building, we are very honestly looking for other

          9  uses for it. It is quite a beautiful structure and

         10  we would hate to see it demolished.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Now, in the

         12  current budget we note that the budget for Fiscal

         13  Year '99 and the $27 million in FY '99 has been

         14  eliminated, we would like to see this project

         15  proceed in a timely fashion and we are concerned

         16  about the elimination of funding in the outer year;

         17  what is the reason for the elimination of funding?

         18                 MR. GROPPE: I am Robert Groppe. I am

         19  the Capital Budget Director.

         20                 There was never that much money in FY

         21  '99 for the Kingsbridge Armory. There is $2 million

         22  in Kingsbridge Armory, Capis ID, REC 024KBA. That is

         23  the existing funding that is in FY '99.

         24                 There was a lump sum in the outyears,

         25  that has not been reduced since I have been here in
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          2  the last three years.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: So you are

          4  stating that there is only $2 million there?

          5                 MR. GROPPE: There is only $2 million

          6  in this year, because as in any large construction

          7  project, whatever the decision is made to do with

          8  that facility, clearly we are going to begin with

          9  design and that is money to kickstart any design,

         10  and if it turns out design is 4 million, 5, whatever

         11  it is, that will be what it is funded at. But there

         12  is no reason to keep the bulk of the construction

         13  money in the first year or two of the plan when you

         14  would have to go through I am sure at least a year

         15  of design work to do whatever you are going to do

         16  with that facility.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: In discussing or

         18  addressing the Year 2000 computer problem, in order

         19  to avert what is possibly a bureaucratic disaster,

         20  in FY 2000 5 and a half million has been allocated

         21  for Y2K upgrade; what step has DCAS taken with

         22  regards to the Year 2000 problem, and how far off is

         23  the Department from having its computer system Year

         24  2000 compatible?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:
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          2  DCAS is responsible in two areas. Number one, we are

          3  responsible for our own internal computerized

          4  systems, and those have all checked out. They are

          5  Y2K compliant.

          6                 We also are responsible for

          7  buildingwide systems, elevators, HVAC systems. We

          8  have checked those out as well. As a matter of fact,

          9  we ran all of the elevators as though it was Year

         10  2000 and all of the elevators worked properly. So,

         11  as far as DCAS is concerned, all of our systems are

         12  Y2K compliant, and hopefully we won't have any

         13  problems.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Let me ask my

         15  last question and then I will defer questions to my

         16  colleagues.

         17                 The emergency bunker, I hate that

         18  term, but in FY '98, $15.1 million was allocated

         19  towards an emergency bunker for the Mayor's Office

         20  of Emergency Management, and the project is no

         21  longer part of the capital budget. What is the

         22  reason for the elimination of that project from the

         23  capital budget? And what is being done with the

         24  funds from that project?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:
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          2  The project has been completed, and the Office of

          3  Emergency Management is operating out of the states.

          4                 To date, we have completed the

          5  project and so that is why you don't see it in the

          6  Year 2000.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: It is being

          8  completed.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         10  Yes.

         11                 There may be a small amount of money

         12  for some change orders or some equipment that is

         13  still outstanding on the project.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: What would you

         15  term a small amount of money?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         17  I would say a couple of hundred thousand dollars.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Oh, chump change

         19  in other words.

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         21  No, it is not chump change. But not a huge amount,

         22  not $15 million.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Fine. Can you

         24  give us an estimate of approximately what you think

         25  it might be really though?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

          3  How much is left in the budget?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Yes.

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

          6  Yes. It's about $300,000.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: How much.

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

          9  $300,000.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: $300,000.

         11                 Now, you said the project is

         12  completed?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         14  Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: And you said

         16  that the Mayor's Office of Management will function?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         18  The Mayor's Office --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Emergency

         20  Management.

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         22  -- Managing Office is operating out of the location

         23  to date.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: They are

         25  operating now from that --
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

          3  As of January 1st, they have been in the location.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Has there been

          5  any public announcement so that we would know that

          6  this is open and operating?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

          8  I believe that the Mayor has had some press

          9  conferences from that location. I believe the staff

         10  tells me in March they had one such occurrence.

         11                 I know the Mayor had a cabinet

         12  meeting there as well a few weeks ago. So, I guess

         13  that is the official notification that the facility

         14  is open.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Now this is at

         16  the World Trade Center?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         18  Yes, 7 World Trade Center.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Now, is that

         20  consistent with the statement that the World Trade

         21  Center bunker would not be used, that I heard as of

         22  yesterday I believe because of the potential for

         23  danger?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         25  I am not aware of any statement that was made.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: But it is in use

          3  currently?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

          5  Yes, it is.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: All right. We

          7  may come back to that.

          8                 Council Member Sabini.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you,

         10  Madame Chair. Good afternoon, Commissioner.

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         12  Good afternoon.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: I just wanted

         14  to make a comment on the Kingsbridge Armory.

         15                 As you asserted, the Armory is a

         16  landmark, both inside and out. Now, my Subcommittee

         17  on Landmarks has had a hearing last year on

         18  demolition by neglect and what came out of that

         19  hearing is that government, not necessarily the City

         20  government, but government in general, is often the

         21  worst offender in demolition by neglect, as we saw

         22  by CUNY at the St. Monica site in Jamaica. I would

         23  hope that at Kingsbridge that we would do something

         24  rather than nothing to make the landmarking of that

         25  armory mean something, both to the residents of the
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          2  nearby neighborhood and to the advocates Citywide

          3  who wanted the thing landmarked. And you know, we

          4  have raised this and a number of issues with your

          5  Department and with LPC, and rhetoric coming out of

          6  the Administration has been more and more perilous,

          7  and that doesn't make a lot of us happy.

          8                 So I would ask you to take back to

          9  Commissioner Diamond that Kingsbridge being a

         10  landmark and also being a critical thing in that

         11  community is something that should be taken

         12  seriously. The Council took it seriously by putting

         13  money in the budget, and the more I hear about it,

         14  and of late the more the word demolition gets thrown

         15  around in sentences and it doesn't make a lot of us

         16  too happy.

         17                 Some of these questions will die as

         18  term limits die, because some of these questions

         19  have been around so long, at least the topics have

         20  been around so long. The vendor of our electronic

         21  voting machines are suing us right now --

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         23  We are in litigation on that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: All right.

         25  What is the status of the lawsuit?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

          3  I have been told by our General Counsel that it is

          4  in litigation and the Law Department is handling it.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: We haven't had

          6  hearings yet or anything like that?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

          8  No, it is not at that stage yet.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: And the

         10  elections project is no longer in the budget?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         12  For next year it is out of the budget.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Right.

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         15  Well, the feeling was, you know, while it is in

         16  litigation, why should we keep staff around.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: I agree. So I

         18  will ask you and I will ask the Board of Elections

         19  at our Expense Budget Hearing when do you think we

         20  are going to see machines in the City which for 20

         21  years we have been hearing that we need it?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         23  I don't mean to be trite in my answer, but I think

         24  when the Law Department comes to testify at their

         25  Expense Budget hearing you should ask them about the
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          2  extent of the case.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Ask them too.

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

          5  Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Okay.

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

          8  Because we can't go forward right now.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Okay.

         10                 In the Fiscal Year 2000 capital

         11  budget now there is $28 million to remediation of

         12  fuel tanks, and that is an issue that I have, at my

         13  request the Environmental Protection Committee has

         14  had hearings on; is this project part of the City's

         15  ongoing program to remediate and replace outdated

         16  underground storage tanks as required under the

         17  federal law because as our hearing brought out,

         18  again, the worst offender of the federal law is the

         19  City of New York?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         21  Right. The lead agency on that project is DDC. You

         22  will find in our capital budget there are very often

         23  items that we are not the lead agency on. So, my

         24  suggestion is when DDC comes to testify, you ask

         25  them about that project.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Do you have

          3  any idea how many tanks, since I believe you have to

          4  provide them with a list of the tanks, do you not?

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

          6  I believe that the Mayor's Office of Operations took

          7  the lead on that project and they would have the

          8  list of tanks that need to be remediated.

          9                 When there was a split between DGS

         10  and DDC, that project went with DDC.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: You testified

         12  about court modernization, yesterday the chief judge

         13  announced a series of courthouse projects that the

         14  state is going to fund, how does that effect our

         15  capital budget, our recent announcement?

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         17  That is a DASNE (phonetic) Project, and, again, the

         18  lead agency will be DDC. It will not be DCAS.

         19                 When the courts are fully constructed

         20  and operational, they will come into our portfolio,

         21  but that won't be a Capital expense, that will be

         22  Expense expense.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Yes.

         24                 Thank you, Madame Chair.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Council
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          2  Member Eristoff.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Thank you,

          4  Madame Chair.

          5                 Let me just begin, I have a whole

          6  series of questions concerning some technology

          7  systems and your agency, but let me just begin by

          8  congratulating you, Commissioner, and the agency

          9  staff for receiving a fairly positive audit from the

         10  Comptroller with respect to your Year 2000

         11  remediation effort.

         12                 As you probably know, different

         13  agencies are at different places on this project,

         14  and it is nice to hear that you are doing fairly

         15  well.

         16                 When you acknowledged that it was a

         17  five and a half million dollar item in Fiscal 2000

         18  for Year 2000 remediation, I am a little puzzled. I

         19  mean, you say we are going to be done with this by

         20  the end of the current fiscal year, are you rolling

         21  over amounts for clean-up work? Or what exactly?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         23  I think the best way to characterize it is

         24  contingency. We will be ready but there is always

         25  the unknown and we want to be able to have that

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            25

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  money in our capital budget in case there are issues

          3  that pop up.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay.

          5                 And how much have you spent to date

          6  then on this program?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

          8  On the Y2K or on the contingency?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: On Y2K.

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         11  I am joined at the table by Dom Gervasi, who is our

         12  Executive Director of MIS and I think you have seen

         13  him testify here before. Don tells me that most of

         14  the work was done in-house, and that maybe as a

         15  whole the agency spent $500,000 on external costs.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Well, then I

         17  am a little confused, I mean five and a half million

         18  for contingency sounds like a lot; what would that

         19  purchase? I mean, we only have --

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         21  That is not just for DCAS. That contingency is also

         22  for the City of New York for Y2K problems, if we

         23  need to purchase or release generators, if we need

         24  to purchase some of these other --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Oh, that
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          2  kind of contingency. Not information systems per se?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

          4  No.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay, fair

          6  enough.

          7                 Let me go to some of the other

          8  projects or initiatives in the agency quickly.

          9                 The Data Imaging Project, how is that

         10  going and how much is it costing?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         12  The project is completed. We are getting back the

         13  disks now from the vendor, and I believe the total

         14  cost was -- we will have to bet back to you, but I

         15  think it is about $200,000.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay.

         17                 The agencywide Internet?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         19  Completed. It is completed and running.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay. And

         21  how much did that cost?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         23  We did that mostly in-house with our own staff. It

         24  was minimal.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: The FAMIS
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          2  system.

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

          4  Well, that is the system I referred to in my

          5  testimony.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay, I am

          7  sorry.

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

          9  That system is currently being implemented. We have

         10  a number of agencies that have been completed. The

         11  Fire Department, ourselves, Environmental

         12  Protection, Police and Correction, we are underway

         13  with Transportation and Sanitation, remaining is the

         14  Housing Authority, Parks and Recreation and Health.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay, and

         16  what are the budget implications?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         18  The project as a whole was about $7 million, so we

         19  have not expended all of that money yet.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: So that is

         21  over a four-year capital plan?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         23  Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Inclusive of

         25  '99 then, right?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

          3  Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: So,

          5  beginning of '99 or?

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

          7  It started before '99.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: '98 through

          9  2002?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         11  Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay.

         13                 The Maintenance Control Management

         14  System, were you able to get it installed at the

         15  Fire Department in March of this year, and are you

         16  planning to get that out?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         18  Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: How much? It

         20  is part of FAMIS?

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         22  Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay.

         24                 Paperless Management System?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:
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          2  I am sorry, I didn't hear you. Paperless?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Paperless

          4  Management System, I was under the impression that

          5  you were using existing staff to implement this

          6  initiative; is that still true?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

          8  Paperless personnel was put in last December by the

          9  agencies.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay. So

         11  there is no other additional cost.

         12                 The Vehicle Salvaging Tracking

         13  System?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         15  The FMS 2000 is handling that.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay. And

         17  then one last thing, video conferencing. Are you

         18  planning to increase the number of sites?

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         20  Yes, we are. We are planning on increasing it in

         21  those boroughs that don't have it, and we are also

         22  going to move some facilities to other facilities.

         23  That will happen over the course of the next three

         24  or four years.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay. And
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          2  have you budgeted anything for that?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

          4  I believe it was going to be in the Expense Budget,

          5  video-conferencing.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Well, there

          7  are certain hard wiring costs and --

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

          9  It is very small.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Well, if it

         11  is so small, why don't we do it now?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         13  It is not the -- it is the facilities that I need.

         14  It is not hardware that I need.

         15                 An example, one of the

         16  video-conferencing facilities is supposed to go into

         17  the Brooklyn Muni Building, the space that the

         18  Brooklyn DA moved out of. The space is a disaster,

         19  the wiring is not there. I have got to do the total

         20  reconstruction of that building first before I find

         21  some space to do video-conferencing.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay.

         23  Because that could give us many, many benefits --

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         25  Absolutely.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: In our

          3  Expense Budget Citywide.

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

          5  We have been a big user of that, particularly for

          6  those City employees who are trying to earn college

          7  degrees, we have used video-conferencing and it has

          8  been very effective.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: I actually

         10  do distance learning myself in my private life, and

         11  I am a big believer that it is very effective and I

         12  would love to see the City use it on a wider basis.

         13                 Thank you, Madame Chair.

         14                 Thank you, Commissioner.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: One of the

         16  things, Commissioner, I would like to commend DCAS

         17  on and the Commissioner on, was in a few instances I

         18  noticed that you said we did this in-house, we did

         19  this ourselves, we did this ourselves, we did this

         20  in-house. I think one of the things that the City

         21  has failed to recognize is the money they save, the

         22  tremendous strength and esteem they have, because

         23  they have the staff and the capability to produce

         24  the kind of professional expertise that they require

         25  in-house. And that is an attribute to the agency and
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          2  to the kind of people you have on staff. It makes a

          3  big difference. So often when you have City

          4  agencies, everyone says let's contract this out and

          5  I make no bones about saying how I feel about having

          6  people on staff who can do the job, who know how to

          7  do it, people who are given the opportunity to excel

          8  in terms of their capability.

          9                 So, thank you at least for

         10  illustrating through your testimony the competency

         11  and efficiency of your agency.

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         13  Thank you, Madame Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: We have been

         15  joined by Council Member Juanita Watkins from

         16  Queens. As you know, Council Member Sabini, of

         17  course, is from Queens, Council Member Eristoff is

         18  from Manhattan and I am from Brooklyn, I am Council

         19  Member Pinkett.

         20                 Do you have a question for DCAS?

         21                 I don't believe there are any further

         22  questions. We would like to thank you for your

         23  presence.

         24                 I would suggest, though, the

         25  information in terms of programs and agencies that
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          2  we may want to ask you, we will submit them in

          3  writing to you and request that we receive a

          4  response and through our Council we would like to do

          5  that so that the Committee as a whole will be

          6  informed.

          7                 This is a very difficult time because

          8  of budget, and people being involved in various

          9  committees and meetings at this time, but we would

         10  like our Committee to be informed so that we can

         11  make the correct decision at the appropriate time.

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:

         13  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you. This

         15  meeting is adjourned.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 1:10 p.m.)
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